
1 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2026 

6:30 P.M. 

 

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Village of Colonie Planning Commission was 

held at Village Hall, 2 Thunder Road, Albany, NY 12205, on Tuesday, January 6th, 2026. 

 

ROLL CALL: Chairman:  Chris Dennis   Present 

   Commissioners:  John Martin   Excused 

      Brittany Kendall  Present 

      Kenny Hart   Present 

      Jim Splonskowski  Present 

      Alison Curran   Present 

      John Lemperle   Present  

   Alternate:  Carl Kuentzel   Present 

   Village Attorney:  Victor Caponera  Present 

   Village Engineer:  R.J. Laberge   Present 

   Village Liaison:  Frank Prevratil  Present 

 

Chairman Dennis opened the meeting at 6:30 P.M. Commissioner Hart led the Pledge of 

Allegiance and requested that all electronic devices be turned off or muted. The 

Commission reviewed the regular meeting minutes from December 16th, 2025. 

Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner 

Splonskowski seconded the motion.  

 

VOTE: Unanimous to approve. 

 

ABD Engineering/Cole’s Collision 

1517/1529 Central Avenue 

Site Plan Review 

 

Dave Kimmer was present from ABD Engineers on behalf of Cole’s Collision to present 

an application for a site plan review. John Cole was also present as the owner of Cole’s 

Collision. Mr. Kimmer explained that Cole’s currently operates at 1517 Central Avenue, 

and they are looking to purchase the parcel next door at 1529 Central Avenue. They are 

proposing to demolish the building to the foundation and rebuild a 12,000 sq. ft. building 

with 3,200 sq. ft. of retail storefront in the front, and 8,800 sq. ft. of storage/warehouse 

space in the rear. The applicant is proposing to keep the existing parking lot in the rear 

for additional parking and a staging area for their vehicles. The proposal also includes an 

 

VILLAGE OF COLONIE 
VILLAGE HALL 

2 THUNDER ROAD 

COLONIE, NY 12205 

(518) 869-7562  FAX (518) 464-0389  

JAMES M. RUBINO 

MAYOR 

villagehall@colonievillage.org 
www.colonievillage.org 

 
FRANK A. PREVRATIL 

DEPUTY MAYOR 
 
PATTY SCHWARZ LOCKART 

TRUSTEE 
JASON M. DEPAULO 

TRUSTEE 
MARK P. STEVENS 

TRUSTEE 
 

JAMIE L. BLOT 
VILLAGE CLERK 

mailto:villagehall@colonievillage.org


2 

 

extension of the fencing and landscaping on the Nash Place side of the parcel. There is 

also a proposed 12’ wide easement from Nash Place to the rear of 1531 Central Avenue 

so access can be maintained. Mr. Kimmer added that the utilities will remain the same. 

He stated that they have received comments from Engineer Laberge regarding the plan, 

with one concern being setbacks with the current building being existing non-

conforming. Mr. Kimmer offered that the applicant is willing to shift the building or 

modify the lot line to be compliant with the setback requirements. Further, a potential 

issue is posed with parking, in that the existing front of the building has 8 parking spaces, 

and it is unknown whether there is an agreement for shared parking with the lot next 

door. The applicant proposed that a 5’ walking aisle could be included in the plan to give 

the retail storefront access to more parking in the rear lot. Mr. Kimmer added that there 

was concern with the proposed easement being 12’ wide where it should be 15’ and 

stated that this could be adjusted. 

 

Chairman Dennis asked if there is a plan to merge the two parcels into one, and Mr. 

Kimmer stated that it will remain two parcels. He added that the parking tabulations 

noted on the plan account for parking on each parcel separately. Chairman Dennis 

mentioned that he believed there is a grade change between the two parcels. Mr. Kimmer 

stated that there is a steep grass slope, and the grade will be eliminated, and the parcels 

will then be at the same grade. Code Enforcement Officer Meservey stated that there is 

erosion from 1529 Central Avenue to 1517 Central Avenue currently, and there is an 

open Order to Remedy for 1529 Central Avenue that has not been complied with. He 

explained that his office has not further pursued this matter because he was informed 

Cole’s Collision would be purchasing the property. He wanted to make the Planning 

Commission aware of this issue, and that the erosion problem would need to be rectified 

with changes to the site.  

 

Attorney Caponera explained that under Village of Colonie Code §242-13, if structural 

alterations are being made to an existing non-conforming building, then the building must 

be brought into conformance. Therefore, if the proposal uses the same footprint for the 

new building, the Planning Commission would have to deny the application and refer the 

applicant to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a setback variance. Attorney Caponera 

mentioned that there has been issues with parking at that site, and he encouraged the 

applicant to review the Village code and consider a different size building that would 

meet the required setbacks. Mr. Kimmer stated that they will look into offering a different 

layout for the building. A discussion was held regarding the current easement between 

1529 and 1531 Central Ave, and the applicant reiterated that if there is an existing 

easement, it would be upheld.  

 

Chairman Dennis asked how much parking Cole’s expects to be using at 1529 Central 

Avenue, and what type of vehicles would be parked there (vehicles to be worked on 

versus customers). Mr. Kimmer stated that there would be 64 total new spaces, and the 

applicant would likely have the existing parking spaces in front, and reserved parking 

spaces in the back to meet parking requirements of retail use. The rest of the available 

parking in the rear would then likely be used for vehicle storage. He added that the 

parking plan would be better delineated on the next submission. Chairman Dennis asked 



3 

 

how much parking would be at 1529 Central Avenue, without crossing property lines. 

Mr. Kimmer offered that the proposal includes 8 spaces in the front, and 39 in the back, 

resulting in 47 total. Chairman Dennis also asked if the green space will be reduced at 

1529 Central Avenue, to which Mr. Kimmer said yes, but marginally as there isn’t much 

to begin with. He explained that the hill would be eliminated and replaced with 

pavement. 

 

Engineer Laberge offered that there are 2 site plans to review, with a site plan amendment 

for 1517 Central Avenue and a site plan review for 1529 Central Avenue. He added that 

the site statistics should be based on each site separately. Mr. Kimmer asked if shared 

parking between parcels is allowed, and Engineer Laberge explained that it is allowed, 

but where one parcel has enough additional parking to be shared. Attorney Caponera also 

added that under Village of Colonie Code §242-11(f), there is a requirement to have 15’ 

roadway in parking lots of all zoning districts.  

 

Commissioner Hart asked how cars would be able to park at 1529 Central Avenue, and 

Mr. Kimmer explained that there will be a 28’ aisle on the same plane. Engineer Laberge 

also asked if the space in the back of the building will be used for workshop space or 

storage. Mr. Kimmer stated that it will be mostly storage, but also potentially sensor 

calibration for vehicles. Engineer Laberge mentioned that this may change the parking 

calculation and suggested that this use is better explained in the narrative. He also added 

that a 25’ foot buffer needs to be considered due to the residential property that is 

adjacent to the property. 

 

Commissioner Hart inquired about the dumpster that is currently located in the back 

corner of 1529 Central Avenue, and what will happen if the other buildings currently 

utilize it. Mr. Kimmer stated that there are other dumpsters for those buildings, and the 

dumpster in question would have to be moved if the owner is selling the property. 

Commissioner Curran asked if the berm and landscaping would be included in the 25’ 

setback to the residential area, and if it wouldn’t be allowed to be used as a roadway 

anymore. Engineer Laberge said yes, or they would have to seek a variance.  

 

The applicant reported that they will update their application and site plans and return in 

front of the Planning Commission for review. 

 

Hershberg & Hershberg/Otto Cadillac 

1767 Central Avenue 

Site Plan Review 

 

Bill Mafrici was present from Hershberg & Hershberg on behalf of Otto Cadillac to 

present an application for a site plan review at 1767 Central Avenue. Chris Otto, Owner, 

and Megan Sorel, General Manager, were present from Otto Cadillac. Mr. Mafrici 

explained that there is a corporate requirement for Otto Cadillac to upgrade the facility, 

which includes 3,200 sq. ft. of additions to the front showroom, and two rear bays. He 

explained that the project includes reconfiguration of the front parking lot, elimination of 

the existing display island, and relocation of some utilities. He added that there is a 



4 

 

proposed net increase to green space due to the reconfiguration. Mr. Mafrici stated that 

they received Engineer Laberge’s comments and see no issue with incorporating them. 

He stated that they would like feedback on the type of landscaping that should be 

included.  

 

Chairman Dennis asked if the showroom addition on the front of the building is the 

footprint of the existing sidewalk, to which Mr. Mafrici said yes. Chairman Dennis also 

asked how the green space will be increased with the elimination of the island, and Mr. 

Mafrici explained that the center of the island is currently concrete with only a 3-4’ strip 

of grass surrounding it. Chairman Dennis inquired about the existing rip rap on the front 

of the site, and Mr. Mafrici stated that it will be removed and replaced with a catch basin 

and hard pipe. In regard to landscaping, Mr. Mafrici suggested low-lying shrubs to give a 

clear view of the building with potentially a shade tree closer to the building. 

Commissioner Hart asked if the display pad will be raised, to which Mr. Mafrici stated 

that it will be elevated 6” for drainage, which is actually level with the existing lot. 

Commissioner Hart also asked if there would be any changes to the lighting, and Mr. 

Mafrici said no. He asked what the addition in the bay will entail, and Mr. Mafrici 

explained that they will be used for detailing and alignments. He added that there are 96 

existing parking spaces, and the proposed plan includes 95 parking spaces plus one 

including the display pad. Satellite parking is still available at Price Chopper (1730 

Central Avenue). Commissioner Hart asked for confirmation that there are no other 

changes to the adjacent parcel, and Mr. Mafrici confirmed this, and that the parcels will 

remain separate with an easement for access. 

 

Attorney Caponera asked what the height of the proposed addition would be, and Mr. 

Mafrici stated 25’. Commissioner Hart asked if there would be illumination, and it was 

discussed that there may be some light in the soffit which would project downwards. The 

sign will also be illuminated. 

 

Chairman Dennis asked where the entrance to the service shop is, based on the floor plan. 

Mr. Mafrici explained that the service lanes will go into the shop in the front of the 

building and out the back through overhead doors. Commissioner Hart asked if the width 

of the entrance is changing, and Mr. Mafrici stated that there are no changes involving 

NYSDOT, and all of the work would be contained on the site. 

 

The applicant reported that they will update their application and site plan and return in 

front of the Planning Commission for review. 

 

Discussion 

 

Planning Coordinator Curran explained that QuickChek (1850 Central Avenue) is 

looking to attend the January 20th meeting, and a submission is anticipated by the end of 

the week. Attorney Caponera reiterated that the applicant will be returning with a more 

detailed plan, but the Planning Commission will have to deny the application and refer 

them to the Zoning Board of Appeals, since they do not meet the 1000 ft. setback 

variance from another gas station on the same side of the road. 



5 

 

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Hart to adjourn the meeting.  

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Splonskowski. 

 

VOTE: Unanimous to adjourn. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Hannah Curran 

Deputy Village Clerk/Treasurer 

Planning Coordinator 

Village of Colonie 


